1986

William Jay Robbins v. Gerald L. Cook, Warden,  
Main Facility, Utah State Prison; David L.  
Wilkinson, Utah State Attorney General : Brief of  
Appellant

Utah Supreme Court

STATEMENT OF ISSUES PRESENTED ON APPEAL

1. Whether Appellant was legally arrested.
2. Whether Amended Information was tainted.
3. Whether Amended Information was constitutional.

STATEMENT OF FACTS

Appellant was arrested on February 17, 1984, by Officer Dave Helquist, of the Kaysville Police Department. Appellant was told that he was being arrested for the uncorroborated claim of sexually molesting an eight year old neighbor girl. Appellant denied the accusation and attested to his innocence.

Notwithstanding Appellant's denial, Appellant was immediately incarcerated in the Davis County Jail. Appellant was not presented with a written charge until February 21, 1984, when an affidavit stating facts based on INFORMATION AND BELIEF was

signed by Mike Lee. The affidavit (Information) indicated that the complaint was based on information obtained from himself and Officer Dave Helquist.

Appellant moved through the judicial process, which culminated in his conviction on April 23, 1984. Appellant was incarcerated in the Utah State Prison on May 9, 1984, where he has since continuously resided. The Second District Court case number was #4525, before Judge Douglas L. Cornaby.

#### SUMMARY OF ARGUMENT

Appellant contends that his arrest, being contrary to Utah law, deprived him of intended constitutional safeguards, and was therefore illegal.

Additionally, Appellant contends that the Information was improperly generated by an unscrupulous complainant, who was his adversary, and was therefore tainted.

Finally, Appellant contends that the Information, being based on information obtained from complainant himself, and the arresting officer, neither having personal knowledge of the facts contained therein, was unconstitutional.

#### ARGUMENT

##### POINT I

##### APPELLANT'S ARREST WAS ILLEGAL

Arresting Officer Dave Helquist, of the Kaysville Police Department, had no justification for incarcerating Appellant since he had only the alleged victim's uncorroborated accusation

against Appellant's claim of innocence at the time of arrest.

The arrest was made in the manifest face of reasonable doubt. Specifically, the alleged victim claimed four other people were with her in the house at the time of the alleged offense which reportedly occurred over a twenty minute period of time. Yet, nevertheless, no corroboration was offered by those four people. Appellant submits that Officer Helquist acted contrary to U.C.A. 77-7-2(2), and by so doing, acted illegally.

Further, Appellant does not believe Officer Helquist presented any magistrate with evidence upon which probable cause could have been determined and upon which a valid warrant for arrest might issue. Since he could have and should have obtained magistrative authority and failed to do so, he acted contrary to U.C.A. 77-7-5. This action was illegal.

Officer Helquist invited Appellant to step from his home to talk without informing him of intention, cause, or authority to arrest. Appellant was then invited to sit in the police car to talk. Appellant was then driven to the Kaysville Police Department still without being so informed. At the Kaysville Police Department, Appellant was confronted with the alleged victim's accusation. Appellant denied the accusation, was searched, handcuffed and delivered directly to Davis County Jail, where he was incarcerated. Officer Helquist, without justification, failed to comply with U.C.A. 77-7-6 as none of the conditions of 77-7-6(1)(2)(3) existed. The entire procedure was

therefore illegal.

Finally, Officer Helquist, in his warrantless arrest of Appellant, failed to meet any of the requirements of U.C.A. 77-7-23. Namely, he failed to take Appellant before any magistrate and in Information state the charge against Appellant before such magistrate. Omission of this procedure in the arrest was illegal.

Officer Helquist's failure to avail Appellant of constitutional safeguards contained in U.C.A. 77-7-2(2), 77-7-5, 77-7-6 and 77-7-23 was in itself not only a public offense, but it deprived Appellant of constitutional safeguards against illegal arrest intended by Utah law.

## POINT II

### THE AMENDED INFORMATION WAS TAINTED.

Because of a notable conflict of interest which complainant Mike Lee had in this case, he properly should have deferred to a less biased person. Since he did not do so, and for other reasons which follow, the Amended Information developed by Lee was seriously tainted.

Mike Lee had threatened Appellant with criminal charges in a serious confrontation about two years prior to his arrest. Earlier on the day of Appellant's arrest, Mike Lee detained Appellant and Appellant's daughter in a confrontation in which Lee accused Appellant of a probation violation.

Prior to Appellant's arrest, Appellant and members of

Appellant's family were intimidatingly pursued in and around the Kaysville area by Mike Lee. Subsequent to Appellant's arrest and while on bail, Lee continued this intimidation even into the town of Layton where Appellant's family had moved. Lee's intimidation continued until Appellant sought and obtained relief through his attorney, John Caine.

Additionally Lee, being an intimate friend of the alleged victim's family, was a frequent visitor at their home before and after Appellant's arrest.

Mike Lee had previously been twice suspended from the Kaysville Police Department for improper investigative conduct, as may be discovered from a cursory review of his employment record with the department.

At the time of Appellant's arrest, Appellant was informed by Officer Dave Helquist that Mike Lee had obtained a tape recorded statement from the alleged victim under conditions which improperly permitted Lee to be alone with her during the entire process. Information obtained by Lee from the alleged victim was laced with serious inconsistencies compared with her testimony at preliminary hearing and trial.

The Information, obtained under improper conditions by Appellant's unscrupulous adversary, was seriously tainted.

### POINT III

#### THE AMENDED INFORMATION WAS UNCONSTITUTIONAL.

The affidavit (Amended Information) indicates the complaint



was based on information obtained from himself (Mike Lee) and Officer Dave Helquist.

Under the United States Constitution, Amendment IV, an affidavit stating facts on INFORMATION AND BELIEF is insufficient. An officer's affidavit may state facts of which he has personal knowledge, and not facts of which he has been informed by others. Schenks\_v.\_U.S. 2d 185.

Under Rule 4 of the F.R.C.P., it provides that an arrest warrant shall be issued only upon a written and sworn complaint showing that there is probable cause to believe that the offense charged has been committed and that the defendant has committed it. "An arrest warrant is invalid where the underlying complaint . . . contains no affirmative allegation that the complainant spoke with personal knowledge of the matters contained therein, does not quote any sources for the complainant's belief, and does not set forth any other sufficient basis upon which a finding of probable cause could be made; and these deficiencies cannot be cured by reliance . . . upon a presumption that the complaint was made on the personal knowledge of the matters on which his charge was based." Giordenello\_v.\_U.S., 357 U.S. 480, 78 S.Ct. 1245, 2 L. Ed. 2d 1503.

It may be safely argued that Officer Lee had no personal knowledge of the alleged incident, but was instead relying on information which he browbeat out of the alleged victim in secret.

Further, there is no evidence contained within the four

corners of the Information, or on any supporting documentation, which may lead the Court to believe that Lee satisfied either of the two tests within the "two-pronged test" of Aguilar v. Texas, 378 U.S. 108 (1964) and Spinelli v. U.S., 393 U.S. 410 (1969).

It can only be assumed that his actions resulted in an unconfirmed, unsupported, and unsworn statement which the Circuit and District Courts improperly accepted as the basis for the charging of a crime.

Officer Lee was not a witness of knowledge, and absent the satisfying of other tests for the determination of probable cause, is wholly incompetent to make the statements which he did against Appellant.

The Information, as written, cannot withstand the bright light of a constitutional validity test, is null and void, and must be overturned.

#### CONCLUSION

The State has indicated that all the claims raised in Appellant's Petition for Writ of Habeas Corpus were known or should have been known at the time of direct appeal, and in fact prior to trial, as they challenge the arrest warrent.

With respect to those claims, Appellant did not know the serious significance of the irregularities connected with complainant Mike Lee until he recently had the opportunity of discussing them with other inmates at the prison.

Only by recent review of the few scanty law books available

at the Utah State Prison did Appellant become aware of the above mentioned higher court rulings concerning the unconstitutional nature of the Information used against him.

Similarly, Appellant did not know of the irregularity of the arrest procedure until he recently read the Utah Code.

Thus, it may be seen that there was no way Appellant could have had the knowledge to have raised these claims until now. He believes his claims do have merit. He knows that Justice did not have her full opportunity in his case, and that it would be wholly unconsionable not to reexamine the conviction.

The State contends that an illegal arrest does not void an otherwise valid subsequent conviction. They also contend that once the risk of illegal detention is dissipated through a subsequent trial, the protection is no longer relevant or necessary because other constitutional safeguards have come into play.

Appellant vehemently takes issue with such a position. Constitutional safeguards apply to arrest procedures, charging documents (Information), and the trial itself. These constitutional safeguards protect against conviction of the innocent. It is obvious that such safeguards do not provide a 100% guarantee that the innocent will never be convicted. However, if three separate safeguards must fail in order to convict the innocent, a greater guarantee of protection will exist than if only one safeguard stands between the innocent and conviction.

This case is one of those in which the constitutional safe-

guards of arrest were brushed aside, as were the safeguards against a tainted and illegal Information. The one final barrier against conviction of the innocent was the trial in which those constitutional safeguards, not being 100% reliable, did, in fact, fail to protect the innocent from conviction. A convincing indication that this is true comes from the trial judge himself.

Judge Cornaby, a rational trier of fact, wrote on the day following trial, "The evidence in this case was not clear cut as to whether or not he was guilty of the offense, but the jury found him guilty."

Appellant designates the entire Record on Appeal along with any other related documents which may be needed by this Honorable Court in its effort to fully judge this matter.

Based on the above, Appellant requests that this Honorable Court grant relief from the conditions which now burden him by setting aside his conviction.