1986

William Jay Robbins v. Gerald L. Cook, Warden,
Main Facility, Utah State Prison; David L.
Wilkinson, Utah State Attorney General : Brief of
Respondent

Utah Supreme Court

STATEMENT OF THE CASE

Petitioner was convicted of sexual abuse of a child with aggravation and was sentenced to a term of five years to life with a minimum mandatory term of three years. Petitioner appealed and his conviction was affirmed in State v. Robbins, 709 P.2d 771 (Utah 1985). Petitioner filed a habeas corpus petition which was denied and was affirmed in Robbins v. Cook, 45 Utah Adv. Rep. 12 (Oct. 30, 1986).

Petitioner also filed a motion in the trial court for correction of a sentencing error on February 11, 1986. Judge Cornaby denied the motion on March 27, 1986. Petitioner next filed a successive petition under Rule 65B(i) which was dismissed because it raised claims that should have been raised on appeal and because it was a successive petition filed without good cause to do so. Petitioner now appeals that dismissal.

SUMMARY OF ARGUMENT

Petitioner's petition was properly dismissed because it raised unappealed issues that were known or should have been known at the time of his direct appeal. The errors alleged by petitioner were not of the type which would make it wholly unconscionable not to reexamine his conviction.

Moreover, petitioner did not raise the issues in his prior collateral attack and alleged no good cause why a second petition should be heard by the court.

ARGUMENT

POINT I

THE COURT PROPERLY DISMISSED PETITIONER'S
WRIT OF HABEAS CORPUS.

On appeal, petitioner argues in his conclusion to his brief that the court erroneously dismissed his petition. Petitioner also sets forth his arguments on all of the issues he would have raised in an evidentiary hearing if the Court had not dismissed his petition. The only issue for this Court's consideration, however, is whether the lower court properly dismissed the petition without an evidentiary hearing. If the court acted improperly, then the case should be remanded for a hearing on the issues raised by petitioner.

Judge Federick granted respondent's motion to dismiss the petition on two grounds: (1) the issues raised by petitioner had not been raised in either of the two prior proceedings and, therefore, were waived; and (2) petitioner had filed successive writs without good cause. These were appropriate grounds for dismissing the petition.

First, petitioner had an opportunity to raise on direct appeal the issues he raised in this proceeding but failed to do so. By raising these issues here, petitioner attempted to circumvent the normal appellate process and transform this action into a second direct appeal. It is well established that the post-conviction remedy provided by Rule 65B(i), Utah Rules of Civil Procedure, may not be utilized as a "substitute for or cannot be used to perform the function of regular appellate review." Codianna v. Morris, 660 P.2d 1101, 1104 (Utah 1983); accord, : Andrews v. Morris, 607 P.2d 816 (Utah 1980); Rammell v. Smith, 560 P.2d 1108 (Utah 1977). Consequently, a petitioner cannot raise issues in a post-conviction proceeding that could or should have been raised on direct appeal, except in unusual circumstances. Codianna, supra; see also Brown v. Turner, 21 Utah 2d 96, 440 P.2d 968 (1968).

The types of unusual errors which are properly cognizable by habeas corpus are narrowly limited to the following situations: (1) when the trial court had no jurisdiction over the person or the offense; (2) where the requirements of law have been so disregarded that the party is substantially and effectively denied due process of law; or (3) where some such fact is shown that it would be wholly unconscionable not to reexamine the conviction. Brown v. Turner, 21 Utah 2d at 98-99, 440 P.2d at 969. The Court further stated in Brown:

If the contention of error is something which is known or should be known to the party at the time the judgment was entered, it must be reviewed in the manner and within the time permitted by regular prescribed procedure, or the judgment becomes final and is not subject

to further attack, except in some unusual circumstance. . . . Were it otherwise, the regular rules of procedure governing appeals and the limitations of time specified therein would be rendered impotent.

440 P.2d at 969.

In the instant case, petitioner made several claims, none of which fell within the unusual circumstances, and all of which were known or should have been known at the time his direct appeal was perfected. Petitioner claimed:

(1) That the Fourth Amendment to the United States Constitution prohibits use of an affidavit for the arrest warrant based upon information and belief.

(2) The charging document was constitutionally deficient.

(3) The trial was tainted by the allegedly faulty arrest warrant and the deficient charging document.

(4) The officer who arrested petitioner acted improperly because he lacked a valid arrest warrant and was biased against petitioner.

All of the claims outlined above are issues which should have been raised prior to trial because they are challenges to the validity of the arrest warrant and the information.

As for the validity of an arrest warrant, this Court recently said that probable cause requirement is not jurisdictional. State v. Schreuder, 25 Utah Adv. Rep. 13 (Dec. 27, 1985). Relying on Gerstein v. Pugh, 420 U.S. 103, 119 (1975), the Court noted that an illegal arrest does not void an otherwise valid subsequent conviction. Schreuder, 25 Utah Adv.

Rep. at 17. The probable cause requirement for arrest warrants protects against illegal detention and once the risk of illegal detention is dissipated through a subsequent trial, "the protection is no longer relevant or necessary because other constitutional safeguards have come into play." Id. at 17. See also State v. Lairby, 699 P.2d 1187 (Utah 1984) (Defendant's failure to object to legality of arrest before trial constitutes waiver of issue).

As to the alleged defects in the information, these claims must also be raised prior to trial or they are waived. State v. Curtis, 700 P.2d 1106 (Utah 1985); State v. Lairby, supra.

Petitioner either waived these issues by failing to raise them prior to trial or by failing to raise them on direct appeal. If petitioner raised the issues prior to trial, he either knew or should have known about them at the time of judgment such that he could and should have raised them on appeal. Thus, his attempt to raise them in the proceeding below was an attempt to substitute the post-conviction remedy for direct appeal, which he cannot do.

Second, petitioner abused the post-conviction remedy by filing successive petitions. Rule 65B(i)(4) provides:

All claims of the denial of any of complainant's constitutional rights should be raised in the post-conviction proceeding brought under this Rule and may not be raised in another subsequent proceeding except for good cause shown therein.


Petitioner did not even attempt to comply with this portion of the rule as he did not state any reason why he filed successive petitions. Because there is no good cause why the Court should have heard his successive petition, it was properly dismissed.

CONCLUSION

Based upon the foregoing arguments, respondent requests this Court to affirm the lower court's dismissal of the petition.